
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Greg Elgin 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
Special Presentation Meeting 

Tuesday, January 17, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
 
   a. 2023-002: A Resolution honoring Hugh Oldham; and other matters related thereto. 

Hon. Brett Sanders 
 
 
 
 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, January 17, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
   
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                                Hon. Cindy Wilson 
 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                                             December 20, 2022, January 3, 2023                                                                                                               
                             

 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, January 17, 2023 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

 
 
 
5. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 
    
    a. 2022-58 An ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 

(2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE 
MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
6. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
    a. 2022-031:  An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted 

July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 35.16 acres from C-2 
(Highway Commercial District) to IZD (Innovative Zoning District) on parcels of land, identified as on Hurricane 
Road and Pine Lane in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 6546 page 302 and Deed Book 
6985 page 37. The parcels are further identified as TMS #93-00-07-004 and #93-00-07-005. (INFORMAL 
PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT)  

 
Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
    b. 2023-001: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 

20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .49 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) to R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of land, identified as 2647 Anderson 
Hwy Williamston in the Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 14259 page 187. The parcel is further 
identified as TMS #197-00-05-018. [District 7]  

 
 
                                                                                                                             Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes)    
 
 
7. ORDINANCE FIRST READING:     

 
    a. 2023-003: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of certain real properties located within Anderson County, 

South Carolina which were a part of the neighborhood initiative program to the Nehemiah Community 
Revitalization Corporation; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

                                                                
                                                                                                                  
    b. 2023-004: An Ordinance to sell a parcel of real property to Anderson School District 3; and other matters 

related thereto. (TITLE ONLY) 
  Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
8. RESOLUTIONS:   
 
    a. 2023-001: A Resolution supporting local match for the community development block grant program; and 

other matters related thereto.  
 

      Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, January 17, 2023 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
    b. 2023-003: A Resolution consenting to a joinder agreement of Pregis Plastics, LLC to an interest under a fee in 

lieu of tax agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and Red Bullet of Anderson, LLC; and other 
matters related thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 
 
 
9. APPOINTMENTS: 
      a. Human Relations Council: Monica Verde                                                                                Ms. Cindy Wilson   
      b. Anderson County Planning Commission: Michael Gilreath                                                         Mr. Greg Elgin  
 
    
 
10. REQUEST BY COUNCIL:  
      a. Lake Hartwell Partners for Clean Water-All Districts 
      b. Split Creek Farm-District 4  
 
 
11. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT: 
      a. Budget Transfers 
      b. Special Projects 
      c. Paving 
 
12. STANDING COMMITTEES OF COUNTY COUNCIL                                                        Mr. Tommy Dunn 
 
 
 
13. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                       Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
14. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION 2023-002 

A RESOLUTION HONORING HUGH OLDHAM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, Anderson resident Hugh Oldham has been referred to by many as a 
“gadfly”, “troublemaker”, “pot-stirrer”, “specialist in subterfuge”, and various other 
epithets which decorum prohibits describing in this forum; and   

WHEREAS, in spite of his shortcomings, of which there are many, Mr. Oldham has 
managed to amass a measure of goodwill among his fellow Andersonians; and  

WHEREAS, perhaps in hope of earning atonement for his sins, of which there are many, 
Mr. Oldham has provided invaluable services to his community, ranging from volunteer 
work at local schools, ongoing advocacy for his fellow veterans, and support for local 
aviation interests, including an involuntary term of service as the manager of Anderson 
Regional Airport; and   

WHEREAS, today we honor Mr. Oldham for his 60 years of work in the Air Show industry, 
for which he was recently inducted into the International Council of Air Shows 
Foundation Hall of Fame; and 

WHEREAS, in their recognition, for which they no doubt received unreported financial 
consideration, the ICAS Foundation noted Mr. Oldham’s work as a safety advocate, 
columnist, mentor and leader in the air show community, and thanked him for his 
passionate and consistent advocacy for a stronger, more sustainable and safer air 
show industry; and 

WHEREAS, over the years, tens of thousands of Anderson County residents have been 
thrilled by the sounds and spectacle at one of the many shows held at Anderson 
Regional Airport courtesy of Mr. Oldham’s generous contributions of his time, talent, and 
treasure; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby offers its 
congratulations to Mr. Hugh Oldham for receiving the highest honor awarded by an 
industry he worked so long and hard to support, and by way of this resolution does 
hereby authorize the display of Mr. Oldham’s ICAS Hall of Fame plaque in a place of 
honor in the Anderson Regional Airport terminal.  

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 17th day of January, 2023. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY    ATTEST 
 
____________________    ____________________ 
Brett Sanders      Rusty Burns 
County Council District Four   County Administrator 
 
       ____________________ 
       Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

DECEMBER 20, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
GLENN DAVIS
RAY GRAHAM
JIMMY DAVIS
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
      



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call to order the regular Anderson County
3 Council meeting of December 20th.  This will be our
4 last regular council meeting of this calendar year.  I
5 want to welcome each and every one here today, and
6 thank y’all for coming out.  We’ll get on with the
7 business.
8 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Sanders to
9 lead us in the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  
10 Before we do, though, let’s have a -- rise,
11 please, and take a minute of silence.  We lost --
12 since our last council meeting, we lost our clerk of
13 court, Mr. Richard Shirley.  Let’s keep our thoughts
14 and prayers for his family as we go through this time.
15 MOMENT OF SILENCE
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Amen.  Mr.
17 Sanders.
18 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
19 sir.  Let us pray.
20 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY BRETT SANDERS
21 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
22 I’d like to -- I want to welcome Mr. Harmon back and
23 want to thank him for all his services he’s done.
24 APPLAUSE
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate
26 what all he’s done and come back.  Don’t want to over-
27 burden him.  Make sure you take care of yourself, Mr.
28 Harmon.  We appreciate you and what all you’ve done.
29 LEON HARMON:  Thank you
30 very much.  And it’s good to be back.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Also, I’d
32 like to take this opportunity before we start the
33 council meeting in case something were to happen, I
34 want to thank Councilman Ray Graham for what all he’s
35 done for the years of service, what he’s done for
36 Anderson County and District 3 and all his citizens. 
37 It’s been a great pleasure and joy to work with you,
38 Ray.  We’re going to miss you very, very much.  Thank
39 you for all you’ve done. 
40 From the whole Council, we got you this gift.  We
41 give you a card, okay.  We appreciate you.  
42 Mr. Davis, would you like to say anything?
43 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you,
44 Mr. Chair.  Mr. Graham, I just want to say you have in
45 many ways taught me a lot that you probably didn’t
46 even think about you taught me, but I appreciate all
47 your wisdom that you imparted on me through not only
48 Council meetings but committee meetings, as well.  I
49 appreciate your service and wish you and your family a
50 very Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
3

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.
2 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
3 sir.  I’d like -- what Jimmy said, I just want to
4 thank Mr. Graham.  I know he’s very passionate and
5 cares about his district deeply.  There’s a lot of
6 things, as Jimmy said, he’s helped me and not even
7 know that he’s helped.  I appreciate the friendship
8 that we formed as Council members and as friends.  So
9 I’m here even long and gone -- after Council is long
10 and gone for me and you.  And if you ever need
11 anything, reach out.  And I appreciate everything.  
12 Thank you for your service.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
14 Glenn Davis.
15 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you,
16 Mr. Chairman.  This indeed has been an honor and
17 pleasure to serve with Ray.  We developed a good
18 friendship.  I just want to say thank you.  You’re one
19 of the ones that helped me when I first got elected. 
20 Helped me and showed me the way.  And I really
21 appreciate, really heartfelt.  Wish you and your
22 family a very Merry Christmas and may God bless you.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   John,
24 Councilman Wright.
25 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Graham, I
26 just wanted to echo everybody else’s comments.  I
27 enjoyed getting the opportunity to serve alongside
28 you.  Obviously I’ve sat beside you.  You’ve offered a
29 great deal of wisdom to me during my time on and any
30 time I had a question about anything, you were always
31 very gracious and gave me some advice on that.  And
32 enjoyed working with you, like Mr. Jimmy Davis said,
33 on -- our time on the committee together, Public
34 Safety Committee, and just appreciate everything that
35 you’ve done to make this county better.  And it
36 certainly is better because of your service, and very
37 much appreciate that.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
39 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Graham,
40 in addition to what all my cohorts have said
41 expressing gratitude to you, I especially thank you
42 for the hard work you did with me on the pipeline fill
43 issues and the landfill concerns.  And because of your
44 hard work on those matters, those things are moving
45 forward in a far more appropriate, healthful way for
46 the community.  Wish you the very best.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
48 Ms. Wilson.  And again, Ray, we appreciate what all
49 you’ve done.  Thank you.  Don’t be a stranger.  And
50 just because you’re not on Council don’t mean we can’t



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
4

1 help you no more or anything.  If we can ever do
2 anything for you, we’ve forged a friendship and want
3 to keep that.  Mr. Burns.
4 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Dunn, one
5 of the things that Mr. Graham has been working on for
6 18 months has come to fruition.  Yesterday we received
7 the official grant papers.  This is going to allow the
8 expansion and consolidation of School District 3.  It
9 is going to move the existing library in Iva to Main
10 Street in Iva and completely modernize that situation. 
11 So it’s going to benefit the town and downtown
12 development.  It’s going to benefit the school
13 district because this is one of their deep desires to
14 do this.  And if we could take a second, Mr. Newton
15 has the paper that he could sign so that we can send
16 back in, and that project will be on the way.
17 We also thank Senator Gambrell for contributing
18 $550,000.00 to it to make a price of a $1,050,000.00.
19 APPLAUSE 
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham,
21 do you have anything you’d like to say?
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Yeah, if you
23 don’t mind.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
25 RAY GRAHAM:  It truly has
26 been a pleasure serving with each and every one of you
27 guys.  Not taking anything from you guys, but one
28 thing about Anderson County, what makes it so great,
29 is definitely our employees.  
30 I know when we first -- well, six years ago when I
31 got on Council, we started looking at pay structure
32 and different things throughout the county.  And you
33 know, with Ms. Rita, her staff, Rusty, his staff, I
34 mean there’s been great strides to move Anderson
35 County forward.  And with society where it is today
36 with everything growing, you know, the market out
37 there trying to literally taking employees from one
38 company to another, it was very important to maintain
39 the structure we had in Anderson County.  And I think
40 we got a head start with that through being able to
41 instrument the pay rate increases after the study. 
42 And there’s no question it benefitted our employees
43 and their livelihoods and their home life.  So I’m
44 definitely proud of that.  Proud of a lot of the
45 accomplishments that we’ve made. 
46 Truly been a pleasure serving with you guys. 
47 Thank you.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
49 Councilman Graham.
50 We’re going to move on now to item number 3,



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
5

1 Resolutions, 3(a), this will be 2022-070.  Councilman
2 Wilson.  Ms. Wilson.
3 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
4 Mr. Chairman.  This is a Resolution to honor and
5 recognize the Honorable Martha D. Newton, Anderson
6 County Probate Judge, for her service to the community
7 upon the occasion of her retirement; and other matters
8 related thereto.
9 And this is indeed from all of us.  
10 Whereas, Judge Martha D. Newton was born in
11 Anderson County in 1942 to Frank L. and Alice Boggs
12 Drake.  Her father was a farmer and carpenter, and her
13 mother was a homemaker.  Both parents are now
14 deceased.  She has one brother and two sisters; and
15 Whereas, Judge Newton was educated in the public
16 schools of Anderson County, Tri-County Technical
17 College, Forrest Junior College, and has a degree in
18 textile designing from International Correspondence
19 School.  After graduation from Crescent High School,
20 she worked at Starr Mills in Starr, South Carolina
21 from February 1960 until September 1977.  Upon leaving
22 Starr Mills she was employed in the Anderson County
23 Probate Court working under the former Judge Ralph
24 King.  She was elected to office in November 1983
25 and took office in January 1984 where she has served
26 since that time; and
27 Whereas, Judge Newton was married to the late John
28 F. Newton for 39 years, is an active member of Norris
29 Hill Presbyterian Church serving as choir member,
30 church treasurer, treasurer of Women in the Church and
31 circle leader.  She is also a board member for Calvary
32 Home for Children where she serves as secretary.  She
33 is a member of the South Carolina Association of
34 Probate Judges, was treasurer for the League of Women
35 Voters, and is a past board member of Anderson
36 Altrusa.
37 Therefore, be it resolved that, in a meeting duly
38 assembled this 20th day of December, 2022, the
39 Anderson County Council hereby congratulates Judge
40 Newton on her retirement, thanks her for her decades
41 of service, and wishes her the best in all her future
42 endeavors.
43 May I put that in the form of a motion, please?
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, you may. 
45 We have a motion by Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
46 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
48 Ray Graham.  Any discussion?
49 CINDY WILSON:  Quick to
50 point out that Judge Newton took our office from back



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
6

1 when to modern technology.  She was always so kind.  I
2 never heard a single constituent stay anything but
3 nice things about how she helped them in really hard
4 times of grief.  And I can tell you, she makes a
5 wonderful fried apple and sweet potato pie because she
6 made them and sold them to benefit Calvary Children’s
7 Home.  So what a wonderful lady.  We certainly hope we
8 see more and more of her out and about.  Thank you.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
10 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of
11 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
12 carries unanimously. 
13 We’re going to move on now, item number 4, the
14 minutes haven’t been received.
15 Citizens comments.  Mr. Harmon.
16 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
17 we have one citizen signed up.  Cammy Clary.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Just for the
19 record will you please state your name for the record. 
20 You’ve got three minutes.  Please address the chair,
21 please.  Go ahead.
22 CAMMY CLARY:  My name is
23 Cammy Clary.  I’m the president of the Anderson County
24 Foster Parent Association.  I appreciate y’all’s time
25 to let me come and speak.  
26 I would like to implore all of you, not just
27 Honorable Glenn Davis, in this request.  Anderson
28 County Foster Parent Association has been here about
29 twenty years.  We still have foster parents who don’t
30 know we’re here.  COVID hit us pretty hard, and it’s
31 just me and another lady at this time.  We have a lot
32 of programs going on.  We serve the entire foster care
33 community.  Not just foster care, pre-adoptive homes,
34 kinship homes and license (inaudible).  
35 And I ask you if any of you have any experience
36 with the foster system.  Do you?  In what capacity?
37 JOHN WRIGHT:  My wife and I
38 have two adopted children, but we’ve also fostered in
39 the past.  
40 CAMMY CLARY:  Awesome. 
41 That’s awesome.  I’m so happy that someone here has a
42 little bit of perspective.  Because until you get into
43 it, you have no idea what the need is. 
44 We’ve been fostering for six years.  We’ve had --
45 I quit counting when I hit the upper thirties.  More
46 than that -- almost forty children has come through
47 our home in that time.  We provide -- we’re working on
48 a mentoring program for teens.  We expect to have that
49 up and running in June.  We have a photography program
50 for young mothers in foster care to do photographs



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
7

1 with them and their child.  We collect formalwear for
2 the dances and things that come up that they just
3 can’t afford that type of clothing.  And we do a
4 support system -- a support meeting once a month.  And
5 we have a mobile trailer that when it came to us the
6 tires were dry rotted, there were holes in it, the
7 lights didn’t work.  And different people donated
8 their time and it’s roadworthy now and we’re working
9 on stocking it with certain items.
10 We try to reach out to the churches.  We try to
11 network and find ways that we can help other people
12 and they can help us.  But some money would go a long
13 way for these programs.
14 Thank you for your time.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
16 Anyone else, Mr. Harmon?
17 LEON HARMON:  No, Mr.
18 Chairman.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
20 Moving on now to item number 6(a), third reading, 
21 Ordinance 2022-055, an Ordinance to approve the grant
22 of a right-of-way easement to Duke Energy Carolinas
23 LLC, on real property owned by Anderson County, South
24 Carolina; and other matters related there.  
25 Again, this is third reading.  Do we have a motion
26 to move this forward?
27 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
29 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
30 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
32 Ray Graham.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
33 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
34 the motion carries unanimously. 
35 Moving on to item number 7(a), ordinance’s second
36 reading, 2022-056, an Ordinance to restrict the use of
37 certain real property owned by Anderson County, South
38 Carolina, to public outdoor recreational use; and
39 other matters related thereto.
40 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
41 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
43 Wilson.  Have a second?
44 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
46 Glenn Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
47 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
48 the motion carries unanimously. 
49 We’re going to move on to item number 8(a),
50 Ordinance first readings, 2022-058, an ordinance to



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
8

1 amend an agreement for the development of a joint
2 county industrial and business park (2010 park) of
3 Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the
4 park.
5 Mr. Nelson.
6 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you,
7 Mr. Chairman, members of Council.  This is a multi-
8 county park agreement that we have with Greenville and
9 Anderson.  This particular addition to the ordinance
10 has a project for Anderson, Project Limestone is being
11 added, a property with them, as well as properties in
12 Greenville County for unannounced projects.  And of
13 course, this allows incentives for projects at these
14 locations from the state of South Carolina.  And we
15 have a reciprocal agreement, obviously, with
16 Greenville and receive the same benefits for those
17 projects that we have and that they have. 
18 Thank you, sir.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
20 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
21 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
23 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
24 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
26 Glenn Davis.  Any discussion, questions, comments for
27 Mr. Nelson?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
28 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
29 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
30 Thank you, Mr. Nelson.
31 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
33 item number 9, Resolution 022-071, a Resolution to
34 accept PARD grant award, McFall’s Landing.  Mr. Burns,
35 what do we need to do, or Mr. Davis?  Whoever.
36 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
37 TOMMY DUNN:   We appreciate
38 all what you and your staff has done and Steve getting
39 these PARD grants.  Do we have a motion to move this
40 forward?
41 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis,
43 and second by Ms. Wilson.  That’s Glenn Davis made the
44 motion, Ms. Wilson seconded.  
45 Now any discussion?  Again, what to appreciate
46 you, Steve, what all you do for this, going through
47 that, and you and Mr. Burns looking out for this
48 stuff.  Want to thank the Delegation for giving us
49 these things.  Anyone else?  All in favor of the
50 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
9

1 the motion carries unanimously. 
2 Moving on to item number 9(b), Resolution 2022-
3 072, a Resolution to accept PARD grant award for
4 Anderson Regional Airport.  Have a motion to put this
5 on the floor?
6 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
7 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
9 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
10 discussion.  Do you want to tell the folks what this
11 is for?  This is for the playground?
12 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
14 Appreciate you and your staff and Steve for all what
15 they’ve done to make these PARD grants happen.  And we
16 want to appreciate the Delegation.  Anyone else?  All
17 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
18 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
19 We’re going to move on to item number 10, change
20 order approvals.  We’re going to go to 10(a), TK
21 Elevator Corporation Proposal for Anderson County
22 Health Department.  Anybody want to touch base on this
23 a little bit?
24 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
25 as you know, we’re responsible for the maintenance and
26 upkeep of those buildings.  This costs $194,565.00 for
27 elevator work on that facility.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
29 motion to move this forward?
30 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
31 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
33 Sanders and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
34 Sounds like a pretty good deal.  We got $100,000.00
35 elevator, plus we get $13,000.00 in PARD grants and
36 over there the state is giving it to us again.  We
37 appreciate them.  Anymore discussion?  
38 Well, I want to tell you, it sticks in my craw we
39 have to keep these builders up and we’ve got no say
40 about them.  If they get a leaky roof, we’ve got to
41 fix it.  We have to do this, we have to do that.  Same
42 way with that one across the road over there.  It’s
43 unbelievable.  Anyway.  Anymore discussion?  All in
44 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
45 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
46 Moving on to item number 10(b), Bid No. 23-029, 
47 Health Department Roof.  
48 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
49 you can repeat the same speech that you just gave. 
50 It’s for $148,620.00 for a new roof at the health



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
10

1 department.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   A gift that
3 keeps giving.
4 CINDY WILSON:  Over a
5 million dollars for a roof for that crummy building.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
7 motion?
8 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
10 Wright.
11 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
13 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
14 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
15 motion carries unanimously. 
16 We’re going to move on now to item number 11, road
17 acceptances into the county inventory.  We’ll start
18 with District 1.  We have three roads -- four roads. 
19 Do we have a motion to accept these?
20 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
22 Sanders.  Do we have a second?
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Second John
25 Wright, Jr.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
26 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
27 the motion carries unanimously. 
28 Do we have a motion now 11(b), this will be
29 District 2, Strawberry Ridge, River Trace Subdivision,
30 District 2.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
31 GLENN DAVIS:  So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
33 Glenn Davis.  Do we have a second?
34 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
36 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
37 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
38 motion carries unanimously.
39 Now we’re going to move on to item number 12,
40 appointments.  Ms. Wilson.
41 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
42 Mr. Chairman.  In sadly noting the passing of Mr. Gary
43 McAlister, it was very awesome, his grandson has
44 requested to come on to the board.  Very well
45 credentialed young man.  And it’s so exciting to see
46 young people getting involved in our local economy. 
47 This young man graduated magna cum laude from Clemson. 
48 I think he has a construction degree and went to work
49 for his grandfather, who was a very noted, honorable
50 builder in this county for decades.  So it’s my honor



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
11

1 to recommend to our Council in approving Mr. Joseph
2 Ferguson to go on our Economic Development Board.  And
3 I put that in the form of a motion.
4 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
6 Ms. Wilson; second Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All
7 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
8 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
9 Anyone else have any appointments I’m not aware
10 of?
11 Hearing none and seeing none, we’re going to move
12 now to item number 13, requests by council members. 
13 Mr. Jimmy Davis.
14 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you,
15 Mr. Chair.  From the District 6 special appropriations
16 account, I’d like to make a motion to appropriate
17 $1,000.00 to the Anderson County Foster Parent
18 Association.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
20 motion Mr. Jimmy Davis.  Do we have a second?
21 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
23 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
24 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
25 motion carries unanimously.
26 Moving on now to Councilman Brett Sanders.
27 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
28 Mr. Chairman.  Out of my special appropriations
29 account, I would like to also give $1,000.00 to the
30 Anderson County Foster Parent Association.  Put that
31 in the form of a motion.
32 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
34 Mr. Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All
35 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
36 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
37 Mr. Glenn Davis.
38 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you,
39 Mr. Chairman.  I’d also like to appropriate out of my
40 special rec account $1,000.00 to Anderson County
41 Foster Parent Association.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
43 motion.  Do we have a second?
44 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
45 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
47 Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
48 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
49 motion carries unanimously.
50 Mr. Ray Graham.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
12

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing at
2 this time.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
4 Moving on to John Wright, Jr.
5 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you,
6 Mr. Chairman.  Out of District 1's special rec
7 account, I’d like to appropriate $1,000.00 to the
8 Anderson County Foster Parent Association.  Put that
9 in the form of a motion.
10 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
12 Mr. Wright and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
13 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
14 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
15 Moving on to Ms. Wilson.  Ms. Wilson.
16 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
17 Mr. Chairman.  Our District 7 account is almost empty,
18 but I would like to appropriate $200.00 to this cause. 
19 I think we’ve been hearing more and more of the
20 desperate need of foster care and help for those young
21 people.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
23 second?
24 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
26 John Wright, Jr.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
27 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
28 the motion carries unanimously.
29 Out of District 5's special appropriations
30 account, I’d like to appropriate $1,000.00.  Put that
31 in the form of a motion.
32 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
34 Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
35 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
36 the motion carries unanimously.
37 We’re going to move on now to item number 14,
38 citizens comments.  Mr. Harmon.
39 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
40 no one is signed up to speak at this time.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
42 We’re going to move on now to remarks from Council
43 members.  Ms. Wilson.
44 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
45 Mr. Chairman.  It can’t be said how blessed we are in
46 this county.  And I greatly appreciate the wonderful
47 team work in this county with our staff and our
48 citizens and my fellow Council members.  And just want
49 to wish everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy Healthy
50 New Year.  Thank you.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
13

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
2 Ms. Wilson.  Going to move on to John Wright,
3 Councilman Wright.
4 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you,
5 Mr. Chairman.  Just want to echo Ms. Wilson’s
6 comments, how much I’ve enjoyed working with everybody
7 up here this year.  I think we’ve made a lot of
8 progress and excited for the work to come in 2023. 
9 We’ve accomplished a lot; we’ve got a long way to go. 
10 And want to wish everybody a Merry Christmas and Happy
11 New Year.  Thank you.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
13 Councilman Graham.
14 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you,
15 Mr. Chairman.  Likewise just want to wish everybody
16 and their families a Merry Christmas.  I think we’ve
17 had a great year and it’s been a pleasure working with
18 you.  Thank you.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
20 Councilman Glenn Davis.
21 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you,
22 Mr. Chairman.  I’d also like to piggyback on the other
23 comments that it’s been a good year.  I’d also like to
24 encourage everyone to keep looking up.  Thank you.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
26 Mr. Davis.  Brett Sanders.
27 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
28 sir.  First, I’d like to thank Ms. Clary for coming
29 out.  I think it goes a long way when people come and
30 request money to actually show up and explain their
31 needs instead of just putting it on a piece of paper
32 and not taking the time.  So thank you for your
33 effort.
34 Also, again, want to thank Mr. Graham for his
35 friendship and service to this county.  And I’d like
36 to wish everybody here a happy and Merry Christmas and
37 a Happy New Year and look forward to seeing you in
38 2023.  Thank you.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
40 Mr. Jimmy Davis, Councilman Davis.
41 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you,
42 Mr. Chair.  Ms. Clary, again, thank you for being
43 here.  I can count on one hand in the past four years
44 that someone has actually requested money and been
45 here.  So I appreciate you being here.  I appreciate
46 your efforts and your organization.  I’m sure it goes
47 unnoticed more than it should, but we appreciate you
48 being here and may God bless you in your efforts.
49 I also want to thank Councilman Graham for his
50 service to Anderson County and serving on the



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - December 20, 2022
14

1 Association of Counties board.  You represented us
2 well down there and we -- we had no qualms about our
3 representation when you were down there and
4 represented the county well.  You’ve done Anderson
5 County a great service, and I appreciate you.
6 Want to wish everyone a Christ filled Christmas
7 and looking forward to the new year.
8 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman,
9 may I?
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
11 CINDY WILSON:  I brought
12 Wilson Farms pecans for y’all and I’m going to have to
13 bring another load up to get the rest of our folks. 
14 Hope y’all enjoy them.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
16 Mr. Burns.
17 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Dunn,
18 just to remind everybody that if you don’t have
19 anything to eat on Christmas Day, Pastor Merriweather
20 and his group will be providing meals for hundreds and
21 hundreds of people at the Anderson County Farmers
22 Market.  It’s absolutely free.  And they greatly
23 appreciate the kind donation from County Council.
24 Also, at 10:00 on Thursday, we will have a service
25 of remembrance for the indigent and forgotten out at
26 our memorial.  Just to remind people.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   And that’s
28 across the road from the Civic Center.
29 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   I want to
31 appreciate everybody for what they done this past
32 year.  Look forward to working with you the coming
33 year.  I want to thank everybody for what they’ve done
34 this past year.  Hope everyone has a Merry Christmas
35 and a safe Christmas and safe holiday.  
36 I want to thank the staff and all of our Council
37 for what all you’ve done and Mr. Burns and his staff. 
38 Stay safe and keep everybody in our thoughts and
39 prayers.
40 Meeting be adjourned.
41
42 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 11:29 A.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

JANUARY 3, 2023

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
GREG ELGIN
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 3, 2023
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I
2 would like to call the -- this part of Anderson County
3 Council meeting of Oath of Office to order on January
4 the 3rd, 2023.  I want to welcome each and every one of
5 y’all here tonight and thank y’all for coming out.
6 First of all, I’d like to ask Pastor Jones if he’ll
7 lead us in the invocation.  We’ll all rise, please.
8 INVOCATION
9 TOMMY DUNN:   At time I turn
10 the program over to our Administrator, Mr. Burns.  Mr.
11 Burns.
12 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
13 SWEARING IN OF GREG ELGIN BY SHERIFF CHAD MCBRIDE 
14 APPLAUSE
15 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
16 SWEARING IN OF COUNTY COUNCIL 
17 BY CLERK OF COURT REENA THOMASON
18 APPLAUSE
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Before we get
20 into the closing thing, would any Council member like
21 to have any remarks and say anything before we adjourn?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I
23 may?
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
25 Davis, Councilman Jimmy Davis.
26 JIMMY DAVIS:  I want to
27 welcome Mr. Elgin.  I look forward to serving with you. 
28 To the rest of my fellow Council representatives, I
29 look forward to another couple of years of doing great
30 things for Anderson County.  Thank you.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
32 Anyone else?
33 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Cindy
35 Wilson.  
36 CINDY WILSON:  Welcome Mr.
37 Elgin.  And if Mr. Joe has pointed out, I’m very proud
38 and honored to serve the wonderful people of this
39 county and to work with such fine men.  I greatly
40 appreciate it.  Thank you.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
42 Anyone else?
43 GREG ELGIN:   I just want to
44 say I appreciate everybody being here tonight.  I
45 appreciate all my family.  Appreciate everybody up here
46 for giving me advice and kind of helping me through
47 things.  I’ve kind of been watching y’all a while, so I
48 really appreciate it.  And again, look forward to
49 serving Anderson County and all my constituents.
50 Again, thank everybody for being here.  I



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 3, 2023
3

1 appreciate it.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
3 Councilman Elgin, it’s a privilege to welcome you
4 aboard and look forward to working with you.  We’ve
5 worked together many years in fire service and look
6 forward to working with you.  I know you’re an
7 honorable person.
8 I want to thank everyone else, again, for coming. 
9 And we’re going to close now with benediction from the
10 Reverend Jones, Pastor Jones.
11 If we would all rise, please.
12 BENEDICTION FROM PASTOR JONES
13 RUSTY BURNS:  We have a great
14 deal of food in the conference room.  Please help
15 yourself to all you want.  Thank you.
16
17 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:10 P.M.)



4

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 3, 2023

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
GREG ELGIN
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
5

1 TOMMY DUNN:   ... 3rd of 2023
2 Council meeting to order.  This is our first Council
3 meeting of the year.  I’d like to welcome each and
4 every one here and thank y’all for coming to
5 participate in your local government.
6 At this time I’d like to ask the Honorable
7 Councilman Jimmy Davis if he would lead us in the
8 invocation and pledge of allegiance.  If we’d all rise,
9 please.
10 JIMMY DAVIS:  Let us pray.
11 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS
12 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
13 move on now -- move forward now with the next item on
14 the agenda, election of Chairman.  After that will be
15 Vice Chairman.  Do we have a nomination for Chairman?
16 CINDY WILSON:  Yes, Mr.
17 Chairman, may I?
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
19 CINDY WILSON:  I would like to
20 nominate a gentleman who has made a great effort for
21 Anderson County and runs such an efficient meeting and
22 allows us to discuss, respectfully, the items that need
23 to be discussed.  
24 And I would like to nominate you, sir, Mr. Tommy
25 Dunn, as our Chairman, if you’re willing to continue.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
27 Wilson.  I appreciate that.  Do we have a second?
28 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
29 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Brett
31 Sanders, Councilman Sanders.  Any further nominations? 
32 Seeing and hearing none, nominations will be closed. 
33 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
34 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
35 Now we’ll open up the floor for nominations for
36 Vice Chairman.
37 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman,
38 may I again?
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
40 CINDY WILSON:  I guess I get
41 the old biddy floor here.  I would like to nominate Mr.
42 Brett Sanders for Vice Chairman.  He’s a gentleman who
43 has a great head for numbers and provides wise counsel
44 on a lot of these issues that we’re dealing with.  And
45 if he’s willing to serve as Vice Chairman, I would like
46 to nominate him.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
48 Wilson.  We have a motion.  Do we have a second?
49 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
6

1 Jimmy Davis.  Any more nominations?  Seeing and hearing
2 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
3 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
4 unanimously. 
5 Before we move on, I’d just like to take this
6 opportunity to thank my fellow council members for the
7 trust in me and all.  I promise y’all I will give it my
8 best.
9 Moving on now, approval of minutes of November the
10 15th.  Are there any corrections or changes to be made?
11 CINDY WILSON:  May I make a
12 motion that we accept as presented?
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson
14 makes a motion we accept as presented.  Do we have a
15 second?
16 GREG ELGIN:  Second.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Greg
18 Elgin.  All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
19 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
20 unanimously.
21 We’re going to move on now to the December 6th
22 minutes.  Do we have any corrections to be made to
23 that?  Or are we moving forward?
24 CINDY WILSON:  Yes, sir.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
26 CINDY WILSON:  On page 14, on
27 line 22, the word was stockpile rather than stop
28 pollucite.  That would be stockpile, if we could make
29 that correction.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Any others?
31 CINDY WILSON:  That’s all.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Do you make the
33 motion to accept the minutes with those corrections?
34 CINDY WILSON:  As amended. 
35 Thank you.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson
37 makes a motion.  Do we have a second?
38 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by John
40 Wright.  All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
41 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
42 unanimously. 
43 We’re going to move on now to citizens comments. 
44 When Mr. Harmon calls your name, please step forward
45 and state your name and district for the record.  You
46 have three minutes.  Keep items on agenda items only
47 the first go-around.  You have three minutes.  Mr.
48 Harmon.
49 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
50 no one is signed up to speak at this time.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
7

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
2 Harmon.  And again, let me say it’s good to have you
3 back for our regular meeting.  I know you was at our
4 last one, but it sure is good to see you sitting there.
5 LEON HARMON:  Thank you very
6 much.  I appreciate it.  Glad to be back.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
8 item number 7, third reading, 7(a), 2022-056, an
9 Ordinance to restrict the use of certain real property
10 owned by Anderson County, South Carolina, to public
11 outdoor recreational use; and other matters related
12 thereto.  
13 This is third reading.  Do we have a motion to move
14 this forward?
15 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
16 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
18 Sanders and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
19 ---
20 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, I
21 think we’ve got to do a public hearing ---
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Oh, I’m sorry.
23 LEON HARMON:  --- on this
24 item.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Yep, yep.  We
26 need to open up for public hearing.  Before we go into
27 public hearing, just make sure Mr. Burns and Mr.
28 Harmon, do y’all want to explain this a little bit if
29 they want to talk about it?
30 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
31 this is the property that the county owns right below
32 the dam in Piedmont.  We received a half million dollar
33 grant.  One of the restrictions that they require is
34 that we use it for recreation because that’s exactly
35 what we told them we were going to use it for.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   This will be a
37 public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
38 matter, please step forward and state your name and
39 district for the record.  You have three minutes. 
40 Address the chair, please.  Public hearing.
41 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
42 closed.  We have a motion and a second.  Any further
43 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
44 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
45 unanimously. 
46 We’re going to move on to item number 8(a), second
47 reading, 2022-058, an ordinance to amend an agreement
48 for the development of a joint county industrial and
49 business park (2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville
50 counties so as to enlarge the park.  



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
8

1 Do we have a motion to move this forward? 
2 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Greg
4 Elgin, second Ms. Wilson.  I’m going to open the floor
5 up for Mr. Nelson.
6 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
7 Dunn and members of Council.  This is adding two
8 properties, two sets of properties, to the Anderson-
9 Greenville Multi-County Park.  One of those is for
10 Anderson County, Project Limestone, which is a Hunt
11 Midwest property up on 81 North at Evergreen.  And the
12 other is a project in Greenville, Project Bulls Eye,
13 and properties for that project, which is unannounced
14 at this time.  But it allows both sites opportunities
15 for state incentives.  Thank you for your time, sir.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Any
17 further discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in
18 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
19 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
20 We’re going to move on now to item number 9(a),
21 ordinance first reading, 2023-001, an Ordinance to
22 amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
23 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
24 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .49
25 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial District) to R-20
26 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of
27 land, identified as 2647 Anderson Hwy, Williamston in
28 the Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book
29 14259 page 187.  The parcel is further identified as
30 TMS #197-00-05-018.  This is in District 7. 
31 This will be a public hearing.  Before we go into
32 the public hearing, Ms. Hunter, do you have anything
33 you want to say or add at this time?  Okay.  We’ll go
34 into a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
35 matter, please step forward and state your name and
36 district and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all? 
37 Show the public hearing will be closed.
38 Ms. Wilson.
39 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
40 Chairman.  I would like to make a motion to approve
41 this rezoning.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
43 motion by Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
44 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by
46 Councilman Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  Hearing none,
47 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
48 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
49 We’re going to move on to item number (b), 9(b),
50 first reading, 2023-002, an Ordinance to amend



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
9

1 Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
2 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
3 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.76
4 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial District) to R-MHP
5 (Residential Manufactured Home Park District) on a
6 parcel of land, identified as 110 Smith Motors Rd in
7 the Bowling Green Precinct shown in Deed Book 14748
8 page 7.  The parcel is further identified as TMS
9 #173-00-06-005.  This is in District 7.  This will be a
10 public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
11 matter, please step forward and state your name and
12 district.  You have three minutes, and address the
13 chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing
14 none, the public hearing will be closed.  Ms. Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman,
16 unlike the previous one, there was great dissent on
17 this.  I would like to make a motion to deny.  And also
18 offer that we really study the RV issues in our county.
19 We have so many applications now and most of them don’t
20 have sewer, don’t have proper utilities and so forth.
21 But in this case, the landowners adjoining were very
22 upset about that, so my motion is to deny.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
24 motion by Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
25 JIMMY DAVIS:  I’ll second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by
27 Councilman Jimmy Davis.  Any further discussion?
28 JIMMY DAVIS:  May I ask a
29 question?
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis,
31 Councilman Jimmy Davis.
32 JIMMY DAVIS:  The motion is
33 to -- for denial?
34 CINDY WILSON:  My motion is to
35 deny rezoning.
36 JIMMY DAVIS:  Okay.  I just
37 want to make sure we’re clear on that.  Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
39 Anyone else?
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
41 TOMMY DUNN:   John Wright.
42 JOHN WRIGHT:  Just for
43 clarification, Ms. Hunter, this went before the
44 Planning Commission; correct, and it was denied.  Is
45 that right?  Okay.  Thank you.  I thought so; just
46 wanted to make sure.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
48 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
49 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
50 Thank y’all.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
10

1 There’s no resolutions.  
2 We’re going to move on to number 11, approval of a
3 sub-recipient agreement between Anderson County and the
4 United Way of Anderson.  Mr. Burns.
5 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
6 this is a grant from Duke Foundation for $250,000.00. 
7 It’s to do preliminary work on the trail from Anderson
8 to Belton.  The first part will be a feasibility study
9 and the other money will be used later for engineering
10 purposes.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
12 motion to move this forward?
13 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
15 Wilson; second by John Wright.  Now discussion.  
16 CINDY WILSON:  Very quickly.  
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
18 CINDY WILSON:  This is a very
19 exciting addition to the walking and recreational
20 assets for the county.  And our Mr. John Caime made the
21 discovery of this trail bed that could be used.  So
22 we’re very fortunate to have such astute guidance on
23 that.  
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, we are.
25 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
27 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
28 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously.
30 We’re going to move on to item number 12, Anderson
31 County Atax Committee Requests and Recommendations
32 Summary.  Do we have anyone wanting to discuss this and
33 put a motion on the floor?
34 CINDY WILSON:  May I quickly
35 point out ---
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am. 
37 Ms. Wilson.
38 CINDY WILSON:  --- I would
39 really appreciate if we could find a few more dollars
40 for the Senator T. Ed Garrison Arena advertising
41 budget.  Clemson owns that property and it’s a state
42 asset.  It was our original heads-in-beds revenue
43 getting, so to speak, for the county.  Many, many
44 agricultural pursuits and competitions up there.  And
45 now that there’s a new exhibition hall, there is a
46 potential to do a small agricultural exposition.  Maybe
47 not quite as big as the one in Moultrie, Georgia, but
48 that is such an excellent venue.  And it brought lots
49 of tourism in and continues to do so.  Of course, it
50 doesn’t hold a candle to Green Pond these days, but it



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
11

1 still brings in a lot.  So I would appreciate if we
2 could figure a way to give them a little more
3 advertising funding there.  And everything else that I
4 reviewed looked really good.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Any other
6 comments?  Mr. Brill.  Mr. Burns, Mr. Harmon, could we
7 -- I’m asking my fellow Council members.  I would --
8 got no problem making a motion to put another $1,000.00
9 on the T. Ed Garrison thing if we can find it within
10 what we’ve got; take a hundred dollars here, a hundred
11 dollars there, if that’s suitable with other Council
12 members to work that out?  Can y’all work that out?  Is
13 that good for y’all?  Can you do that?
14 GLENN BRILL:  I would suggest
15 Mr. Dunn just taking the thousand dollars from grant
16 number 3 and applying it to the T. Ed Garrison Arena
17 grant.
18 BRETT SANDERS:  Does that make
19 them whole?
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Is that
21 acceptable to everybody?
22 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you.  I’m
23 sure they will appreciate it.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  I make
25 that motion then.  And do we have a second?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Brett
28 Sanders.  Do we have any discussion?  All in favor of
29 the motion show of hands.  Wait a minute.  You got
30 something you want to say?
31 BRETT SANDERS:  I was asking
32 does that make them whole on their advertising?  
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Yeah, that’ll
34 get it where ---
35 CINDY WILSON:  Yeah.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   All in favor of
37 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
38 the motion carries unanimously.  Thank you.
39 We’re going to move on now to requests by all
40 Council members.  And thank you, Mr. Brill.  We
41 appreciate you and your team’s hard work and the
42 committee.  Tell them Council has gratitude and
43 appreciate what they’ve done.  We have a committee of
44 citizens appointed by each of us that’s appointed to
45 that and makes these recommendations.  I know it’s
46 tough.  But there are state laws and guidelines we have
47 to go by to meet certain criteria.
48 We’re going to move on now to item number 13,
49 requests by council members.  Mr. Davis.  Jimmy Davis. 
50 Councilman Jimmy Davis.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
12

1 JIMMY DAVIS:   Thank you, Mr.
2 Chair.  From the District 6 special appropriation
3 account, I would like to allocate $500.00 to the United
4 Negro College Fund to support their college education
5 for first generation students.  I make that in the form
6 of a motion.
7 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
8 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
10 motion by Mr. Jimmy Davis and second Brett Sanders. 
11 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
12 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously. 
14 Mr. Davis, anything else?
15 JIMMY DAVIS:  No, sir.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Brett
17 Sanders, Councilman Sanders.
18 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
19 Chairman.  I would also like to appropriate $1,000.00
20 to the UNCF out of my special rec account.  And I put
21 that in the form of a motion.
22 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
24 Mr. Sanders and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
25 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
26 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
27 Anything else, Mr. Sanders?
28 BRETT SANDERS:  That’s all. 
29 Thank you, sir.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Now Councilman
31 Glenn Davis.  Councilman Davis.
32 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
33 Chairman.  I’d also like to give, out of District 2's
34 special rec account, $2,000.00 to UNCF.  I put that in
35 the form of a motion.
36 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
38 motion by Mr. Glenn Davis and second Ms. Cindy Wilson. 
39 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
40 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
41 unanimously.
42 We’re going to move on to Mr. John Wright.
43 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
44 Chairman.  I would also like to appropriate $1,000.00
45 from District 1's special rec account to the United
46 Negro College Fund.  Put that in the form of a motion.
47 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
48 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. John
50 Wright and second Mr. Brett Sanders.  Any discussion? 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
13

1 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
2 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
3 We’re going to move on now to Ms. Wilson.  
4 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
5 Chairman.  District 7 is almost broke, but this is
6 certainly a worthy cause.  Thank you.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
8 Wilson.  Out of District 5's special appropriations
9 account, I’d like to appropriate $1,000.00, and I put
10 that in the form of a motion, to UNCF.
11 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
13 second by John Wright.  Any discussion?  All in favor
14 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
15 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
16 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I
17 may, I think they’re short $500.00.
18 BRETT SANDERS:  No, they should
19 be over ---
20 JIMMY DAVIS:  Okay.  
21 BRETT SANDERS:  I think they’re
22 over $500.00.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Everybody good? 
24 We’re going to move on now to comments from Council
25 members.  Ms. Wilson.
26 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you. 
27 Just a quick thank you to everyone.  We have plenty of
28 challenges ahead this year.  But with the grace of God
29 and good citizens and good teamwork, we’re going to do
30 quite well.  Thank you.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
32 Mr. Wright.
33 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
34 Chairman.  Just want to welcome Mr. Elgin onboard. 
35 Look forward to serving alongside him and the rest of
36 my Council members to make 2023 a great year for
37 Anderson County.  Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
39 Councilman Elgin.
40 GREG ELGIN:   Yes, sir. 
41 Again, I just want to say I appreciate everybody up
42 here, again.  Thank you for what you’ve helped me with
43 along the way.  Again, thanks to all my family for
44 being here.  Since I didn’t say it earlier, today is my
45 dad’s birth, so happy birthday.  Thank you for being
46 here.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on,
48 Councilman Glenn Davis.
49 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
50 Chairman.  I’d also like to welcome Mr. Elgin.  Look



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
14

1 forward to working with him during the next two years
2 and look forward, as this Council moves forward, to
3 doing great things for Anderson County.  Thank you,
4 sir.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
6 Councilman Brett Sanders.
7 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
8 Chairman.  I also would like to welcome Mr. Elgin.  And
9 I also look forward to working with him.  I’d also like
10 to thank my fellow Council members for the honor to
11 serve as Vice Chairman again.  And last but not least,
12 I’d like to at least recognize Brian Richardson with
13 our Facilities Department.  I think they were out all
14 hours of the night and the early morning during
15 Christmas and the holidays due to some water leaks and
16 other things.  Just want to thank him and his
17 department and let everyone know what great employees
18 we have.  Thank you.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
20 Councilman Jimmy Davis.  Councilman.
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
22 Chair.  Just look forward to working with everyone this
23 next term.  I do want to bring up, you know, thinking
24 forward to this term, the next two years, when I
25 decided to run for office several years ago, you know,
26 it was -- I wanted really to see development along the
27 Saluda River in both recreational and for economic
28 development purposes.  And I believe Anderson County
29 does a great job, even more so than our neighboring
30 counties, in focusing on quality of life through
31 recreation for our citizens.  You know, it’s not always
32 -- we look at what things -- a lot of people look at
33 what things cost.  But what good recreational
34 possibilities, both active and passive, bring to our
35 county, it’s a huge draw for economic development and
36 for residential development, as well as
37 commercial/industrial.  
38 I look forward to working with everyone.  And I’ve
39 got some really -- some good ideas, I think, going
40 forward to boost our recreational ideas across the
41 county.  I look forward to working with everybody. 
42 Every district is a little bit different, but we’re
43 also a lot the same.  And I think we can put our heads
44 together and really focus on making sure that there’s
45 plenty to do out there and to further promote Anderson
46 County.  
47 I’ve been working with Mr. Glenn Brill on the
48 thought of maybe hosting a regional disc golf
49 tournament.  It’s a huge sport now and we’ve got a lot
50 of great courses in Anderson County.  And I think it



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 3, 2023
15

1 would draw a lot of people and put people in just about
2 every district across the county playing this great
3 sport.  So just ideas like that.  
4 I look forward to working with you on there.  I
5 mean we’ve done so much with your help up at Dolly
6 Cooper Park, and we’ve got a lot of good things planned
7 for Hurricane Springs Park, as well.  So I look forward
8 to working with everyone.  And I’m just excited for
9 what our future holds.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
11 Councilman Davis.  
12 Mr. Burns, do I need to appropriate any money to
13 the Rec Department, Matthew Schell’s department, for
14 their appreciation?
15 RUSTY BURNS:  No, sir, not at
16 this point in time.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Just
18 wanted to double check to get something took care of.
19 I also want to echo Councilman Sanders about the
20 county employees, especially Brian Richardson’s
21 department and all, what they went through.  I mean
22 they worked Christmas, Christmas Eve and really worked
23 beyond the call of duty about the busted waterlines. 
24 We do have a great team.  Want to thank them for their
25 hard work and dedication to the citizens of Anderson
26 County.  
27 I want to thank my fellow Council members for
28 moving forward, the work we’ve got.  We’ve got a lot of
29 stuff and a lot of challenges coming up.  And I know we
30 can get it done with all of us working together.
31 And I want to, again, welcome Mr. Elgin on.  Look
32 forward to working with him.  I know we have a great
33 team here in Anderson County and get a lot of stuff
34 done.
35 Thank y’all, again, everybody for coming.  And I
36 want to wish Mr. Elgin a happy birthday from Anderson
37 County Council.  Thank y’all.
38 APPLAUSE
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Meeting be
40 adjourned.
41
42 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:52 P.M.)



  
 

NPGVL1:2281621.1  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-058 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcel(s) in Greenville County;  
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that (i) Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and (ii) Exhibit B to the Agreement is hereby and shall 
be amended and revised to include property located in Anderson County described in the schedule attached 
to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County of a 
corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and Exhibit A 
and Exhibit B as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 17th day of January 2023.  
 
ATTEST 
 
 
________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Administrator, Anderson County Chairman, Anderson County Council    
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Renee Watts 
 Clerk to Anderson County Council 
  



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 
 
 
First Reading: December 20, 2022  
Second Reading: January 3, 2023 
Third Reading: January 17, 2023 
Public Hearing: January 17, 2023 



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
MP I-85 Masters Industrial, LLC (Project Bullseye 1; Project Bullseye 2; and Project Bullseye 3) 
 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situate, lying and being on the southern side of Interstate 
Highway 1-85 (U.S. Highway #29) in the County of Greenville, State of South Carolina, containing 72.595 
acres (net of railroad right-of-way) more or less, as shown on plat of survey entitled “Survey for Patton-
Garrison Property” made by Freeland & Associates dated June 15, 1984, and having according to said 
survey the following metes and bounds, to-wit: 

Beginning at an iron pin on the southern edge of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 1-85 at the 
intersection of said right-of-way with the center line of the Seaboard Coast Line Railroad; thence leaving 
the right-of-way of said highway and with the center line of the Railroad, the following courses and 
distances: S. 18-53E., 280.90 feet to a point, S. 18-42 E. 100.00 feet to a point; S. 17-05 E., 100.00 feet to 
a point, S. 14-38 E., 100.00 feet to a point, S. 11-31 E., 100.00 feet to a point, S. 8-11 E., 100.00 feet to a 
point, S. 5-39 E., 100.00 feet to a point; S. 1-46 E., 165.10 feet to a point, S. 0-19 E. 1300.00 feet to a point 
at the corner of tract of 70.987 acres; thence with the line of said tract N. 74-52 W., 2608.67 feet to an iron 
pin on the southern edge of the right of-way of Interstate Highway 1-85; thence with said right-of-way the 
following courses and distances: N. 32-02 E., 108.11 feet to an iron pin, N. 37-40 E., 263.34 feet to an iron 
pin, N. 43-56 E. 233.26 feet to an iron pin, N. 53-18 E., 447.64 feet to an iron pin, N. 59-03 E., 730.23 feet 
to an iron pin, N. 60-29 E., 998.10 feet to an iron pin and N. 59-03 E., 58.80 feet to an iron pin at the center 
of railroad, the point of beginning . 

LESS AND EXCEPT that portion of the property conveyed to South Carolina Department of 
Highways and Public Transportation by deed of Junius H. Garrison, Jr., Herbert S. Garrison, Murray T. 
Jackson and Larry L. Benson dated June 10, 1992, and recorded in Deed Book 1481 at Page 482. 

TMS #: WG11000300100 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

Addition to Exhibit B to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
Anderson Land, LLC (Project Limestone) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel of tract of land lying, being and situate in the County of Anderson, State of 
South Carolina containing 71.800 acres, more or less, and shown as Tract 1A on a plat prepared for Anderson 
Land, LLC by Samuel B. Glenn, Jr. P.E. & L.S. (PLS Number 24277) dated May 13, 2022 and recorded in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds Office for Anderson County in Plat Book S2926 at Page 2 and having the 
metes and bounds as shown thereon. 
 
Tax Map No. Part of 1440005004 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
(i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate, and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of December 20, 2022, January 3, 2023, and 
January 17, 2023, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public 
_______________.   
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ___________, 2022 
 
 











































Ordinance #2023-001 
Page 1 of 3 

2647 Anderson Hwy 

 
Ordinance #2023-001 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .49 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 
District) to R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of land, 
identified as 2647 Anderson Hwy Williamston in the Williamston Mill Precinct 
shown in Deed Book 14259 page 187. The parcel is further identified as TMS 
#197-00-05-018. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to R-20 for +/- .49 acres of TMS #197-00-05-018 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on December 13, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from to C-2 to R-20 +/- .49 acres of TMS #197-00-05-018 described above; 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on January 3, 2023, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2023-001 
Page 2 of 3 

2647 Anderson Hwy 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to R-20 +/- .49 acres of 
TMS #197-00-05-018 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2023-001 
Page 3 of 3 

2647 Anderson Hwy 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2023-001 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading: January 3, 2023 
 
2nd Reading: January 17, 2023 
 
3rd Reading: February 7, 2023 
 
Public Hearing: January 3, 2023 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2
Anderson County Planning Commission

Staff Report
December 13, 2022

Applicant: Melanie Patterson

Current owner: LBB Investments LLC (Melanie S. Patterson)

Property location: 2647 Anderson Highway, Williamston

Precinct: Williamston MIll

Council district: 7

TMS#(s): 197-00-05-018

Acreage: +/- .49 acres

Current zoning: C-2 (Highway Commercial District)

Requested zoning: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District)

The residential district is established as an area in which the
principal use of land is for single-family dwellings and for
related recreational, religious, and educational facilities
normally required to provide an orderly and attractive
residential area. The regulations for these districts are
intended to discourage any use which, because of its
characteristics, would interfere with the development of or
be detrimental to the quiet residential nature of the area
included in the districts.

Surrounding zoning: North: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District)
South: R-A (Residential-Agriculture District)
East: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District)
West: Unzoned

Evaluation: This request is to rezone .49 acres from C-2 to R-20. The
applicant wishes to move the property line on the C-2
property over 125 feet in order to accommodate
construction of an accessory agriculture shelter on the
neighboring property.

Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification
actions have been completed, as follows:
- November 23, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent

to 142 property owners within 2,000’ of the subject
property.

- November 23, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on
subject property;

- November 23, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing
advertisement published in the Independent-Mail.



Page 2 of 2
Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the

rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their
recommendation at that time.

















ORDINANCE NO. 2023-003 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
WHICH WERE A PART OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVE PROGRAM TO THE 
NEHEMIAH COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION CORPORATION; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, beginning in 2015, Anderson County participated in the Neighborhood 

Initiative Program (“NIP”), a federally funded program managed in South Carolina by the South 
Carolina Housing and Development Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, the NIP process required the involvement of a non-profit corporation and the 

County partnered with the Pelzer Heritage Commission to acquire properties which met the 
requirements of the NIP; 

 
WHEREAS, the properties were acquired and titled in the Pelzer Heritage Commission 

and deeded to the County for clean-up and maintenance of the properties; 
 
 WHEREAS, there are five (5) properties located within Anderson County at 11Q Street 
(TMS 123-13-13-003), 1400 Evergreen Street (TMS 123-13-08-012), 416 Rogers Street (TMS 123-
12-07-016, 708 Jackson Street (TMS 123-11-08-007), 309 Glenn Street (TMS 
123-06-19-007) which were part of the NIP;  
 

WHEREAS, the Nehemiah Community Revitalization Corporation desires to acquire 
these properties for residential use; and 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to cancel its lease of those properties and agrees 

and requests that the properties to be deeded by the County of Anderson to the Nehemiah 
Community Revitalization Corporation. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 
 
 1. Anderson County agrees to deed its properties located at 11Q Street (TMS 123-13-
13-003), 1400 Evergreen Street (TMS 123-13-08-012), 416 Rogers Street (TMS 123-12-07-016, 
708 Jackson Street (TMS 123-11-08-007), 309 Glenn Street (TMS 123-06-19-007) the Nehemiah 
Community Revitalization Corporation. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any 
and all documents necessary to accomplish the transfer of these properties to the Nehemiah 
Revitalization Corporation. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest and 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 



 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ______ day of January, 2023. 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator Anderson County Council 

 
 
 
 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

 
 
First Reading:  

 
Second Reading:   

 
Third Reading:  

 
Public Hearing:  



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-004 

AN ORDINANCE TO SELL A PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY TO ANDERSON 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 3; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. (TITLE 
ONLY) 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO.: 2023-001 

 
A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING LOCAL MATCH FOR THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO.  

WHEREAS, an opportunity exists for Anderson County to improve the quality of life of its 

residents by utilizing a Community Enrichment Grant through the Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program from the SC Department of Commerce; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Enrichment Grant would be used for the relocation of the Iva 

Library; and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County must commit $992,869.00 local FUND match and commit to 

sharing cost savings on a pro rata basis in order to receive a Community Enrichment Grant of 

$500,00.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council has appropriated these matching funds as part of its 

FY22-23 general fund budget: 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 

 1. The Anderson County Council confirms its commitment of $992.689.00 in local match 

funds for the referenced CDBG project and commits to sharing any cost savings with the grant funding 

agency on a pro rata basis. 

 2. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict only, 

repealed and rescinded.   

 3. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or otherwise 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the remainder 

hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable.  

 4. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment.  



 

 

 
 RESOLVED this _____ day of January, 2023 in meeting duly assembled. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   
 
 
       
___________________________________        
Renee Watts                                  
Clerk to County Council 
        
            
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-003 
 
A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A JOINDER AGREEMENT OF PREGIS 
PLASTICS, LLC TO AN INTEREST UNDER A FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND RED BULLET OF 
ANDERSON, LLC; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.  
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”) entered into that certain 
Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement under Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT 
Act”) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), with Red Bullett of 
Anderson, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company (the “Company”), dated as of 
December 1, 2020 (the “Fee Agreement”) with respect to the establishment by the Company of 
manufacturing facility or commercial enterprise in the County located upon a parcel of land in 
Anderson County, South (the “Project”) and whereby, among other things, the County provided 
certain fee-in-lieu of tax treatment for Project assets; and 
 
 WHEREAS, consistent with Section 5.13 of the Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-120 
and Section 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, the Company desires to have Pregis Plastics, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, (the “Co-sponsor”) join as a Sponsor pursuant to the Fee 
Agreement and be subject to the terms and requirements of the Fee Agreement and all related 
documents, and the Company has requested that the County provide its consent to such joinder; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has caused to be prepared and presented to the County a Joinder 
Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Joinder Agreement”), containing 
provisions implementing the matters referred to in the foregoing recitals, and the County has 
consented to the same. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council of the County (the 
“County Council”), in meeting duly assembled: 
 
 1. In accordance with the FILOT Act, the County approves the Joinder of the Co-
sponsor to those certain rights, interests, duties and obligations set forth in the Joinder Agreement 
and which arise under the Fee Agreement and all related documents. 
 

2. The County hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Joinder Agreement shall be 
deemed effective as of January 1, 2020. 

3. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the 
sections, phases, and provisions hereunder. 

 4. The Chairman of the County Council and/or the County Administrator are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute the Joinder Agreement attached hereto, with such 
changes as do not adversely impact the County and as are recommended by counsel for the County, 
in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and 



  

directed to attest the same; and the Chairman of the County Council and/or the County Administrator 
are hereby further authorized and directed to deliver said executed Joinder Agreement to the Co-
sponsor. The Chairman of the County Council and/or the County Administrator are hereby further 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any other documents as may be necessary or desirable 
to assist in the Joinder of the Co-sponsor to the Fee Agreement, all as consistent with this Resolution.  
 
 5. All orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 
such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after 
its passage by the County Council. 
 
 6. The authorization of the execution and delivery of the Joinder Agreement and the 
other documents or obligations of the County required by the Fee Agreement is subject to the 
compliance by the County Council with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the procedural 
requirements for adopting ordinances and resolutions. 
 
 

 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



  

Done in meeting duly assembled on _________________, 2022. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

 
     By:_____________________________________________   
     Tommy Dunn, Chairman of County Council  
     Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
      
ATTEST:     
 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
Renee Watts, Clerk to County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina     
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ 
Leon Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 



 

Exhibit A to Resolution 
Joinder Agreement 

 
See attached 

  



 

2 

 JOINDER AGREEMENT 
  

Reference is hereby made to (i) that certain Fee Agreement effective December 1, 2020 
(“Fee Agreement”), between Anderson County, South Carolina (“County”), Red Bullet 
Anderson, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, as sponsor (“Sponsor”), and Pregis 
Plastics, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a sponsor affiliate (“Affiliate” and, 
together with Sponsor, the “Company”). 

  
1.          Joinder to Fee Agreement. 
  

The undersigned hereby (a) joins as a party to, and agrees to be bound by and subject to all of 
the terms and conditions of, the Fee Agreement; (b) acknowledges and agrees that (i) in 
accordance the Fee Agreement, the undersigned has been designated as a Sponsor Affiliate by 
the Company for purposes of the Project and such designation has been consented to by the 
County in accordance with the Act (as defined in the Fee Agreement); (ii) the undersigned 
qualifies or will qualify as a Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-
30(20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Act; and (iii) the undersigned shall have all of the rights and 
obligations of a Sponsor Affiliate as set forth in the Fee Agreement.  

  
2.          Capitalized Terms. 

  
All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Joinder Agreement shall have the meanings 

set forth in the Fee Agreement. 
  

3.          Governing Law. 
  

This Joinder Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of South Carolina, without regard to principles of choice of law.  

  
4.   Effective Date. 
 
        This Joinder Agreement shall be effective as of January 1, 2020 by intent and consent of 
Anderson County Council. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Joinder Agreement to be 

effective as of the date set forth below.  
  

Dated: _______________  
     By:_____________________________________________   
     Tommy Dunn, Chairman of County Council  
     Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 



 

3 

By: ______________________________________ 
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
      
ATTEST:     
 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
Renee Watts, Clerk to County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina     
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ 
Leon Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
  



 

4 

 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company consents to the addition of the above-named entity 

becoming a Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee Agreement effective as of the date set forth above.  
  
PREGIS PLASTICS, LLC 
 
By:                      ____________________________                                                                        
                      
Name:                ____________________________ 
Its:                      ____________________________                                                                        
         
Date:                  ____________________________ 
Address:             ____________________________ 
                           ____________________________ 
 
RED BULLET ANDERSON, LLC 
 
By:  ____________________________ 
Name:  Jon T. McClure 
Its:  Managing Member 
 
Dated:  ____________________________ 
Address: 200 Masters Boulevard 
  Anderson, SC  29626 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




















































	Agenda CCM January 17, 2023
	2a Resolution 2023-002
	3a CCM Minutes 122022
	3b CCM Minutes 010323
	5a Ordinance 2022-058 MCIP
	6a Ordinance 2022-031 Hurricane Road & Pine Lane
	6b Ordinance 2023-001
	7a Ordinance 2023-003 Transfer of Real Properties to Nehemiah Community Revitalization
	7b Ordinance 2023-004 TITLE ONLY Transfer of property to School District 3
	8a Resolution 2023-001 Community Development Block Grant 
	8b Resolution 2023-003 Joinder Agreement Red Bullet
	9a Appointment Human Relations Council
	10a Appropriation Request Lake Hartwell Partners for Clean Water
	10b Appropriation Request Split Creek Farm
	11a Budget Transfers
	11b Special Projects
	11c Paving



